## **Minutes**

# RESIDENTS' AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE



Meeting held in Committee Room 4 at the Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

## **Thursday 8 October 2009**

	Michael Markham (Chairman)		
	Kay Willmott-Denbeigh (Vice-Chairman) Lynne Allen		
	Tim Barker		
	Janet Duncan David Routledge		
1.	Apologies:		
	There were no apologies.		
2.	Declarations of Interest		
	There were no declarations of interest.		
3.	Minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2009		
	The minutes of the meeting held on 8 September 2009 were agreezed and signed by the Chairman.	eed as a correct	
4.	To confirm that all items marked Part 1 will be considered in Public and that any items marked Part 2 will be considered in Private		
	It was confirmed that all items of business would be considered in public.		
	Consideration of Reports:		
	Reports were considered as set out below.		
5.	Street Lighting Review - Verbal Update from Officers and consideration of draft recommendation	Action By:	
	The Committee received verbal update on the Street Lighting Review from officers. In considering the draft conclusions and recommendations, conclusion 4 was amended to include reasons for delays in the notification to Ward Councillors in respect of complaints received from residents.	Tim Edwards/ Jonathan Westell – Environment and Consumer Protection	

In addition, Members noted that communication between officers and Ward Councillor was a vital link in the communication process with residents. Therefore, to this end, officers would notify Ward Councillors of any issues where complaints had been received from residents, giving reasons or causes (if any) for any delays in repair work.

# Resolved - That the summary of the Committee's draft conclusions and recommendations set out below be noted:

- Publicity the causes in the delay in repairs as well as the improvements that have been implemented needs to be better publicised to raise public awareness.
   Communications with members of the public could be improved via:
  - i) Hillingdon People, the Council's free monthly magazine
  - ii) Setting up a frequently asked questions section on the Council's website.
- 2. **Regular meetings with other London Boroughs –** officers to continue to meet regularly with other London Boroughs to share information and best practice.
- 3. **Improved Technology -** continue to use new technology to improve efficiency, particularly in the areas of lamp long life and energy reduction.
- 4. **Notify Local Ward Councillors –** ensure that local Ward Councillors are:
  - Kept informed when new lights are placed, particularly following requests from the Police
  - ii) Notified where issues of complaints had been received from residents, giving reasons or causes for any delays that may have occurred in repair work

### 6. Safety at Sports Grounds – Update

Norman Stanley, the Licensing Service Manager gave an update on the Safety at sports Grounds report. It was noted that any comments received from the Committee would be noted in the report, and the report be sent to the Cabinet Member for Environment for approval.

The Chairman thanked Norman Stanley for attending the meeting.

	Resolved –	
	That the committee noted the report and endorsed its submission to the Cabinet Member for Environment for approval.	
7.	Future Review topics for consideration by the Committee – Short presentations by Officers on Planning Enforcement (homes in back gardens) and Trading Standards (illegally imported food and cosmetics)	
	Planning Enforcement (homes in back gardens)	
	Jim Lynn, the Planning Enforcement Manager advised that this issued could be tackled by departments in the Council pooling intelligence based resources in order to avoid duplication. He added that Housing Benefits and Environment and Protection Unit (EPU) had commenced the process by setting up a protocol to deal with the issue.	Jim Lynn, Planning and Community Services
	The committee agreed that the main issues for consideration would be a), how to improve the identification of the properties and the property owners that were unlawful using buildings in their back gardens unlawfully as homes and b), what changes to the current legal process would be needed to ensure convictions.	
	Following discussion, the Committee requested officers to report at the next meeting with the following information for further discussion:	
	<ul> <li>How we currently identify unlawful properties and what other methods/partners might be used</li> <li>How we currently identify owners of the properties and what other methods/partners/organisations might be used</li> <li>Outline the time (and process) that it takes for enforcement action to come to fruition and what new legal processes ought to be introduced to ensure speedier convictions</li> <li>Set out proposals for consideration of a way forward</li> </ul>	
	The Chairman thanked Jim Lynn for attending the meeting.	
	Trading Standards (illegally imported food and cosmetics)  The Chairman welcomed Sue Pollitt, Trading Standards Manager and Peggy Law, Environmental Protection Unit Manager.	
	Sue Pollitt gave a presentation with a focus on cosmetics and Peggy Law focused on imported foods.	

Given the wide remit and extent of this area, Members agreed that it would be appropriate to looked at the issue of illegal cosmetics and imported foods in the following two strands:

- 1) Counterfeit cosmetics
- 2) Imported foods

The Committee indicated that it would be useful to focus on common elements such as Border Control and Manufacturers/Retailers.

Members agreed that the main focus would be on what the Council does and could do to protect residents.

Following discussion, the Committee requested officers to provide a scoping report set out in two strands as follows:

- Counterfeit Cosmetics
- Imported Foods –Border Controls and Manufacturers/Retailers

The Chairman asked officers to set the scoping reports under the following three headings:

- Where we are now?
- What Key issues are we faced with?
- Where do we want to be?

The Chairman thanked Sue Pollitt and Peggy Law for attending the meeting.

#### Resolved -

That two scoping reports be presented to the next meeting for consideration as review topics:

- Planning Enforcement (homes in back gardens)
- Counterfeit Cosmetics and Illegally Imported Foods

8.	2009/10 Work Programme	
	The Committee agreed to start future meetings at 6pm.	
	Members agreed that two scoping reports on the following topics would be reported to the meeting on 18 November 2009:	
	<ul> <li>Planning Enforcement (homes in back gardens)</li> <li>Illegally imported foods and cosmetics - it was suggested that this scoping report should be headed Public Protection, with two areas (foods and cosmetics)</li> </ul>	
	Resolved – That the 2009/10 Work Programme be noted.	
9.	Forward Plan - October 2009 to January 2010	
	The Committee considered extracts of items in the Forward Plan for the Cabinet meeting on 17 December 2009. With regard to the forthcoming decision on the Council's Budget - Medium Term Financial Forecast 2010/11 – 2013/14, Members were keen to find out what impact or likely outturn the recent situation at Stockley Park and Uxbridge Golf courses had had on the budget.	
	Resolved – That items on the Forward Plan be noted.	
	Meeting closed at: 8.45pm	
	Next meeting: 18 <sup>th</sup> November 2009	

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Nadia Williams on 01895 277655. Circulation of these minutes are to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.